
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING  
TUESDAY, May 6, 2025 5:00 PM. 
BOARD ROOM, MGSD TREATMENT PLANT, 
1790 HWY. 395, MINDEN, NV 89423 

 
Wastewater Treatment for a Healthy Community and Environment 

 

1790 Hwy. 395 • Minden, Nevada 89423 • 775-782-3546 • 775-782-4915 fax 

 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2.  Public Comment -- Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action 

• Public Comment is limited to three minutes per speaker unless the Board Chairman allows additional time.  
• Per NRS 241.020, no action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself 

has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken. 
 
3.  District Manager’s Report – For Possible Action 

• Discussion includes monthly report of activities, personnel matters, and progress of various projects. 
• Action Items may include matters needing immediate attention or resolution related to plant repairs, 

sewer line repairs, and any other matter of impact to public health and safety. 
 
4.  Chairman’s Comment – Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action 

• Discussion may include comments and/or status of projects not covered under an agenda item. 
(No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been 
specifically included on an agenda as an action item) 

 
5.  Claims Review and Approval – For Possible Action  

• Review and Approval of Bills Paid and Claims Received for March 2025.  
 
6.  Minutes Approval – For Possible Action 

• Approval of Minutes from the April 1st, 2025 Regular Board Meeting and April 8th Special Board Meeting.  
 

7.  Heybourne Meadows Phase VI – For Possible Action 
• Review and approval of Record Drawings and line acceptance for Heybourne Meadows Phase VI. 

 
8.  Gardnerville Ranchos GID Agreement – For Possible Action 

• Workshop scheduling for discussions and possible action related to the 1974 Agreement (including all 
amendments) between Gardnerville Ranchos GID and Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District. 
 

9. Office Addition Design –  For Possible Action 
• Request for Qualifications for District Architect for the office addition design. 

 
 

“Caring for the public health and safety by reliably collecting, treating, and disposing of sewage and 
wastewater through efficient, cost-effective, and eco-friendly means.” 

 

~ MGSD 



 
MGSD Regular Board Meeting 

May 6, 2025, 5:00 pm 
Page 2 

 
 

 
1790 Hwy. 395 • Minden, Nevada 89423 • 775-782-3546 • 775-782-4915 fax 

10.  Attorney-Client Conference – For Possible Action  
• Status Report of Ongoing Matters and Requests from MGSD Staff and Board of Trustees 

Note:  The Board of Trustees reserves the right to interrupt the open meeting during this time and adjourn 
to a closed session for the purpose of having an attorney-client discussion regarding potential or existing 
litigation, pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2).  No action will be taken on an item discussed during a closed 
session. 

 
11.  Engineer’s Report – For Possible Action 

• Action Items may include matters needing immediate attention or resolution related to line 
rehabilitation, line cleaning, and progress of various projects. 

 
12.  Administrative Report by Staff – For Possible Action  

• Action Items may include correspondence requiring immediate action or response by the Board. 
 

13.  Board Comment  – Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action 
• Discussion may include comments and/or status of projects not covered under an agenda item.  

(No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been 
specifically included on an agenda as an action item) 

 
14.  Public Comment -- Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action 

• Public Comment is limited to three minutes per speaker unless the Board Chairman allows additional time.  
• Per NRS 241.020, no action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself 

has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken. 
 
15.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
• The MGSD Board reserves the right to hear any agenda item out of order, to combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and 

remove an item from the agenda or delay a discussion relating to any item on the agenda. 
• Copies of supporting material are available online at www.mgsdistrict.org or can be requested from the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation 

District Office located at 1790 Hwy. 395, Minden, NV 89423, by calling Haley Freeman or Jessica Kneefel at (775) 782-3546, or by email 
at Staff@mgsdistrict.org  or at haley@mgsdistrict.org or at jessica@mgsdistrict.org. 

• Any agenda item represented by an attorney must give written notice to the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District at least fifteen days 
prior to the meeting.   

• All persons attending the meeting are required to sign the guest register.  All meetings are recorded pursuant to NRS 241.035. 
• NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES:  Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped 

persons desiring to attend the meeting.  Please call the MGSD office at (775) 782-3546 in advance of the meeting, so that arrangements 
may be conveniently made. 

• This meeting notice is posted at the following locations: the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District; Douglas County Historic 
Courthouse Building; Gardnerville Post Office; Minden Post Office; and at https://notice.nv.gov 

 
PLEASE DO NOT REMOVE UNTIL: 5/07/2025  

http://www.mgsdistrict.org/
mailto:Staff@mgsdistrict.org
mailto:haley@mgsdistrict.org
mailto:jessica@mgsdistrict.org
https://notice.nv.gov/


Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total

Line # General Account

1 Balance 1st day of Month 2,705,314.38$                 3,036,144.95$                 2,958,187.94$                 3,638,528.62$                    3,824,233.86$                    3,918,249.00$                   3,903,931.87$                4,071,239.30$            4,486,961.49$            -$                             -$                             

2 Cash Receipts

3 User Fees 198,110.75$                    190,380.45$                    15,526.55$                      186,700.17$                       37,227.20$                         213,942.49$                      343,711.80$                   202,634.73$               2,808.60$                    1,391,042.74$                

4 Connection Fees 1,325.50$                         165.00$                           1,661.00$                         3,151.50$                        

5 Capacity Fees 91,806.00$                      17,160.00$                      172,744.00$                    113,256.00$                       127,842.00$                       57,200.00$                     193,440.00$               74,360.00$                  847,808.00$                   

6 Permit Fee Income 200.00$                            200.00$                           

7 Acreage Fees/Annexation Fee 4,454.50$                    4,454.50$                        

8 Consolidated Tax (SCCRT) 11,221.62$                      11,221.62$                      11,221.62$                      11,221.62$                         11,221.62$                         11,221.62$                        11,221.62$                     11,221.62$                  11,221.62$                  100,994.58$                   

9 Ad Volorem 194.96$                            59,981.04$                      167,832.33$                    25,742.88$                         96,340.86$                         4,465.87$                          29,112.81$                     91,716.50$                  79,244.28$                  554,631.53$                   

10 Pass-Through Reimbursement 1,938.75$                         4,041.25$                        8,352.50$                    1,681.25$                    16,013.75$                     

11 GRGID 198,649.58$                    466,924.12$                    110,316.00$                       198,698.57$                      156,510.12$               230,901.00$               1,361,999.39$                

12 Health Ins Reimbursement 83.47$                              83.47$                              83.47$                                83.47$                                333.88$                           

13 Finance Charge Increase/(Decrease) Accrued -$                                 

14 Misc Income Increase/(Decrease) -$                                 

15 Total Cash Receipts 503,330.63$              282,949.36$              836,193.09$              447,320.14$                272,715.15$                428,328.55$                441,246.23$             668,329.97$          400,216.75$          -$                       -$                       -$                       4,280,629.87$          

16

17 Cash Paid Out

18 Capital Expenses (189,872.94)$                   3,777.50$                        220,995.29$                    20,218.96$                         (67,733.03)$                        49,764.83$                        3,071.48$                        40,828.00$                  81,050.09$                     

19 Plant Expenses 141,874.00$                    65,822.20$                      38,948.32$                      53,731.01$                         50,820.05$                         41,215.73$                        83,933.59$                     7,599.21$                    65,535.05$                   549,479.16$                   

20 Collections Expenses 8,474.02$                         3,359.32$                        2,700.39$                         1,131.45$                           1,432.63$                           1,061.20$                          888.02$                           1,151.42$                    1,484.25$                    21,682.70$                     

21 Lab Expenses 16,735.05$                      5,332.11$                        4,778.15$                         5,508.00$                           10,130.39$                         6,932.69$                          2,170.00$                        971.00$                       11,754.81$                  64,312.20$                     

22 Reservoir/Effluent Expenses 392.50$                            315.00$                           1,689.75$                         156.20$                              676.33$                              735.67$                             3,385.47$                        15,174.32$                  335.27$                       22,860.51$                     

23 General & Administrative 38,869.93$                      27,510.24$                      22,048.01$                      25,280.05$                         27,009.34$                         34,568.06$                        18,720.49$                     27,662.58$                  24,675.00$                  246,343.70$                   

24 Payroll-Related Expenses -$                                 

25 Professional Fees 6,027.50$                         4,790.00$                        14,692.50$                      5,589.23$                           6,364.30$                           8,367.50$                          11,769.75$                     9,221.25$                    10,571.25$                  77,393.28$                     

26 Total Expenses 22,500.06$                110,906.37$              305,852.41$              111,614.90$                28,700.01$                  142,645.68$                123,938.80$             102,607.78$          114,355.63$          -$                       -$                       -$                       1,063,121.64$          

27

28 Prepaid Claims Increase/(Decrease) -$                                 

29 Accrued Expenses -$                                  -$                                 

30 Transfers from Other Accounts

31 Transfer to Other Accounts (Decrease) (150,000.00)$                   (250,000.00)$                   (150,000.00)$                   (150,000.00)$                      (150,000.00)$                      (300,000.00)$                     (150,000.00)$                  (150,000.00)$              (150,000.00)$              (1,600,000.00)$               

32

33 Total Balance last day of Month 3,036,144.95$               2,958,187.94$              3,638,528.62$               3,824,233.86$                 3,918,249.00$                 3,903,931.87$                4,071,239.30$              4,486,961.49$          4,622,822.61$          -$                          -$                          -$                          

MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE

ACCOUNT SUMMARY STATEMENT

For the NineMonths Ending, Friday, March 31, 2025

 
 

Page 1 of 2



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total

MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE

ACCOUNT SUMMARY STATEMENT

For the NineMonths Ending, Friday, March 31, 2025

 
 

36 Payroll Account

37 Balance 1st of Month 59,198.70$                      42,873.69$                      58,093.46$                      50,120.24$                         35,335.22$                         (12,553.84)$                       167,593.20$                   121,248.72$               109,088.34$               -$                             

38 Transfer from Checking 150,000.00$                    250,000.00$                    150,000.00$                    150,000.00$                       150,000.00$                       300,000.00$                      150,000.00$                   150,000.00$               150,000.00$               1,600,000.00$                

39 Interest 126.86$                         179.01$                         99.84$                           63.17$                             57.18$                             50.10$                             41.60$                          30.77$                      86.95$                      735.48$                        

40 -$                                  -$                                 

41 Payroll Expenses (166,451.87)$                   ($234,959.24) ($158,073.06) ($164,848.19) ($197,946.24) ($119,903.06) ($196,386.08) ($162,191.15) ($153,047.61) (1,553,806.50)$               

42 Balance Last day of Month 42,873.69$                    58,093.46$                    50,120.24$                    35,335.22$                      (12,553.84)$                     167,593.20$                   121,248.72$                 109,088.34$             106,127.68$             -$                          -$                          -$                          

45 LGIP POOL Account

46 Balance 1st of Month 1,282,936.01$               1,250,014.12$              1,255,674.23$               1,261,381.63$                 1,266,750.84$                 1,271,979.26$                1,276,928.78$              1,243,321.88$          1,247,979.43$          

47 Transfer from Checking

48 Interest Earned 5,661.43$                      5,660.11$                      5,707.40$                      5,369.21$                        5,228.42$                        4,949.52$                       4,976.41$                     4,657.55$                 4,298.69$                 46,508.74$                   

49 ARRA Payment (38,583.32)$                     ($38,583.31) ($77,166.63)

50 Transfer to Other Accounts

51 Balance Last day of Month 1,250,014.12$               1,255,674.23$              1,261,381.63$               1,266,750.84$                 1,271,979.26$                 1,276,928.78$                1,243,321.88$              1,247,979.43$          1,252,278.12$          -$                          -$                          -$                          

53 ARRA Bond Restricted

54 Balance 1st of Month 90,046.30$                    90,443.84$                    90,853.55$                    91,266.69$                      91,655.35$                      92,033.82$                     92,392.10$                   92,752.32$               93,099.58$               

55 Transfer from Other Accounts -$                                 

56 Interest Earned 397.54$                         409.71$                         413.14$                         388.66$                           378.47$                           358.28$                           360.22$                        347.26$                    320.82$                    3,374.10$                     

57 Transfer to Other Accounts

58 Balance Last day of Month 90,443.84$                    90,853.55$                    91,266.69$                    91,655.35$                      92,033.82$                      92,392.10$                     92,752.32$                   93,099.58$               93,420.40$               -$                          -$                          -$                          

61 MEEDER Investments

62 Balance 1st of Month 5,183,926.28$               5,204,541.75$              5,225,094.65$               5,245,097.90$                 5,266,060.31$                 5,286,004.28$                5,306,325.82$              5,326,690.09$          5,345,847.26$          

63 Earned on Investments 21,481.07$                    21,066.62$                    20,869.49$                    21,828.97$                      20,810.43$                      21,187.85$                     21,230.73$                   20,023.66$               21,290.14$               189,788.96$                 

64 Net Realized Gain/Loss 352.06$                         

65 Investment Fund Fees (865.60)$                          (865.78)$                          (866.24)$                          (866.56)$                             (866.46)$                             ($866.31) ($866.46) ($866.49) (866.62)$                      (7,796.52)$                      

66 Transfer to Other Accounts

67 Balance Last day of Month 5,204,541.75$               5,225,094.65$              5,245,097.90$               5,266,060.31$                 5,286,004.28$                 5,306,325.82$                5,326,690.09$              5,345,847.26$          5,366,270.78$          -$                          -$                          -$                          

69 Petty Cash

70 Balance 1st of Month 500.00$                            500.00$                           500.00$                            500.00$                              500.00$                              500.00$                             500.00$                           500.00$                       500.00$                       

71 Expenses -$                                 

72 Reimbursements -$                                 

73 Balance Last day of Month 500.00$                         500.00$                         500.00$                         500.00$                           500.00$                           500.00$                           500.00$                        500.00$                    500.00$                    -$                          -$                          -$                          

74

75 TOTAL CASH ALL ACCOUNTS 9,624,518.35$           9,588,403.83$           10,286,895.08$         10,484,535.58$           10,556,212.52$           10,747,671.77$          10,855,752.31$        11,283,476.10$     11,441,419.59$     -$                       -$                       -$                       

Page 2 of 2



CHECK REGISTER - GENERAL

3/1/25 - 3/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount

1 3/5/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5888 212823 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids 193.76$              

2 3/5/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5888 212838 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids 406.98$              

3 3/5/2025 Flyers Energy, LLC EFT-3/5/25-01 CFS-4173177 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels 737.82$              

4 3/5/2025 Hajoca Corporation EFT-3/5/25-02 S014244388.001 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 46.71$                

5 3/5/2025 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES EFT-3/5/25-03 1020286 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and MAintenance 526.32$              

6 3/5/2025 WESTERN BUYERS LLC EFT-3/5/25-04 15036259 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 20.53$                

7 3/5/2025 NWEA 5889 250305 50700-010 Other Plant Expense Operator Renewal 130.00$              

8 3/5/2025 NUSYSTEMS, INC. 5890 16070 50500-010 Utilities Annual Alarm Monitoring 440.04$              

9 3/5/2025 PACIFIC SHREDDING EFT-3/5/25-05 5248733 64310-010 Statement Billing Supplies Shredding Service 62.06$                

10 3/5/2025 POWER & CONTROL SOLUTIONS, INC. EFT-3/5/25-06 1613 50600-020 R&M Main Breaker Failure Repair Costs Breaker Failure Repair & Maint 1,600.00$           

11 3/5/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5891 RN326408 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 43.00$                

12 3/5/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5891 RN326434 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 35.00$                

13 3/5/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5891 RN326430 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 100.00$              

14 3/5/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5891 RN326429 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 66.00$                

15 3/5/2025 Technology Unlimited 5892 383700 12800-010 Prepaid Expenses Annual Software License 4,740.00$           

16 3/5/2025 Technology Unlimited 5892 383500 65310-010 Software Services Annual Software Maintenance 395.00$              

17 3/5/2025 Warren Averett Technology Group, LLC EFT-3/5/25-07 78336 65310-010 Software Services Azure Usage 1,592.22$           

18 3/5/2025 Warren Averett Technology Group, LLC EFT-3/5/25-07 78991 65310-010 Software Services Office 365 637.20$              

19 3/5/2025 Warren Averett Technology Group, LLC EFT-3/5/25-07 79169 71500-010 IT/Tech Professional Services Out of Scope Services 1,243.75$           

20 3/5/2025 Warren Averett Technology Group, LLC EFT-3/5/25-07 78853 65310-010 Software Services Azure Usage 1,590.49$           

21 3/5/2025 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY 5893 11639278 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 709.54$              

22 3/5/2025 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY 5893 11639775 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 19.08$                

23 3/5/2025 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY 5893 41626394 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 32.89$                

24 3/12/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5894 212871 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids 397.74$              

25 3/12/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5894 212899 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids 408.10$              

26 3/12/2025 E2C E Squared C Inc 5895 B51615 71500-010 IT/Tech Professional Services IT Services 1,120.00$           

27 3/12/2025 E2C E Squared C Inc 5895 B51615 65310-010 Software Services IT Services 20.82$                

28 3/12/2025 FIRST CHOICE COFFEE SERVICES EFT-3/12/25-01 230881 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Kitchen Supplies 44.00$                

29 3/12/2025 Flyers Energy, LLC EFT-3/12/25-02 25-312558 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels 383.41$              

30 3/12/2025 HDR, INC. 5896 1200700851 16800-070 Rehab Concrete in Primary Clarifier 1 & 2 Concrete Rehab 13,366.00$         

31 3/12/2025 Hajoca Corporation EFT-3/12/25-03 S014278326.001 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 37.61$                

Page 1 of 4



CHECK REGISTER - GENERAL

3/1/25 - 3/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount

32 3/12/2025 Hach Company 5897 14400799 52800-010 Pretreatment Testing Effluent Sampler 9,732.90$           

33 3/12/2025 HAVE LIGHTS WILL TRAVEL 5898 DPQ62009 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Light Repairs 1,434.92$           

34 3/12/2025 JOANA PEREZ 5899 957018 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Cleaning Services 360.00$              

35 3/12/2025 LEAF EFT-3/12/25-04 18027477 65300-010 Office Equipment/Hardware Copier Lease 401.23$              

36 3/12/2025 THE PARTS HOUSE 5900 185425 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 30.11$                

37 3/12/2025 THE PARTS HOUSE 5900 185717 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 21.78$                

38 3/12/2025 Polydyne EFT-3/12/25-05 1909972 50400-010 Processing Chemicals Polymer 8,694.00$           

39 3/12/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5901 RN326590 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 72.00$                

40 3/12/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5901 RN326591 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 72.00$                

41 3/12/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5901 RN326776 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 72.00$                

42 3/12/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5901 RN326777 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 72.00$                

43 3/12/2025 SNELL & WILMER, LLP EFT-3/12/25-06 2953835 71100-010 Legal Legal Services 1,365.00$           

44 3/12/2025 Spectrum Business EFT-3/12/25-07 0157628022725 64400-010 Telephone Internet 388.92$              

45 3/12/2025 Thatcher Company of Nevada, Inc. EFT-3/12/25-08 2025400100988 50400-010 Processing Chemicals Chemicals 6,718.60$           

46 3/12/2025 TOWN OF MINDEN 5902 30125 50500-010 Utilities Water and Trash 835.33$              

47 3/12/2025 TOWN OF MINDEN 5903 4529 65200-010 Filing Fees & Permits Water Rights Lease 200.00$              

48 3/18/2025 G.R.G.I.D. 5904 RFND00030 20200-010 Customers With Credit Balances RM REFUND: DEBIT000100 18,200.00$         

49 3/19/2025 Carson Valley Locksmith, Inc. 5905 11873 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance NPW Building Lock 1,394.95$           

50 3/19/2025 Charter Communications 5906 218924901030125 64400-010 Telephone Fiber COAX Line 1,398.00$           

51 3/19/2025 DOUGLAS COUNTY VEHICLE MAINT 5907 31225 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Vehicle Maintenance 7,685.00$           

52 3/19/2025 AT&T MOBILITY EFT-3/19/25-01 X03192025 64400-010 Telephone Cell Phones 1,967.52$           

53 3/19/2025 Flyers Energy, LLC EFT-3/19/25-02 CFS-4190194 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels 107.43$              

54 3/19/2025 Hajoca Corporation EFT-3/19/25-03 S014289490.001 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 16.99$                

55 3/19/2025 LOU'S GLOVES, INC. 5908 58703 50300-010 Safety Equipment & Supplies Nitrile Gloves 445.50$              

56 3/19/2025 NV Energy EFT-3/19/25-04 1790250313 50500-010 Utilities Plant Energy 14,073.64$         

57 3/19/2025 NV Energy EFT-3/19/25-05 800250313 55300-010 Reservoir & Pump Utilities Pump Station Energy 247.77$              

58 3/19/2025 POWER & CONTROL SOLUTIONS, INC. EFT-3/19/25-06 1615 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 5,423.50$           

59 3/19/2025 POWER & CONTROL SOLUTIONS, INC. EFT-3/19/25-06 1614 50600-020 R&M Main Breaker Failure Repair Costs Breaker Failure Repair & Maint 2,322.50$           

60 3/19/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5909 RN326501 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 43.00$                

61 3/19/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5909 RN327060 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 43.00$                

62 3/19/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5909 RN327129 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 72.00$                

Page 2 of 4



CHECK REGISTER - GENERAL

3/1/25 - 3/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount

63 3/19/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5909 RN327130 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis 72.00$                

64 3/19/2025 SOUTHWEST GAS CORP EFT-3/19/25-07 250314 50500-010 Utilities SW Gas 1,389.81$           

65 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 CC022025 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Harbor Freight 106.52$              

66 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 AM021225 50700-010 Other Plant Expense iPhone Storage 2.99$                  

67 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 AM022425 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Kitchen Supplies 58.08$                

68 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 AM022525 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Dump Run 84.65$                

69 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 PB022825 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Fire Marshall 320.08$              

70 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 CS020625 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Concrete (White Cap) 138.56$              

71 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 CS022525 64700-010 Travel & Per Diem NWEA Travel & Per Diem 25.00$                

72 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 LK020525 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 451.93$              

73 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 LG022825 64500-010 Postage Postage 29.99$                

74 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 NQ020425 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repair 117.75$              

75 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 NQ020625 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Grainger 58.88$                

76 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 NQ020725 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Grainger 117.75$              

77 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 NQ022525 64700-010 Travel & Per Diem NWEA Travel & Per Diem 25.49$                

78 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM020425 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Kitchen Supplies 61.23$                

79 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM020425-2 64300-010 Office Supplies & Expense Office Supplies 41.10$                

80 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM020625 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Cleaning Supplies 95.36$                

81 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM020725 65310-010 Software Services Laboratory Laptop License 109.99$              

82 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM021225 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Keurig Replacement 267.69$              

83 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM021325 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels 43.55$                

84 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM021925 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Keurig Water Filter 103.87$              

85 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM022025 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Kitchen Supplies 138.59$              

86 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM022225 52300-010 Lab Supplies Lab Supplies 20.99$                

87 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM022425 65310-010 Software Services Adobe 34.99$                

88 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 HM022525 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels 43.00$                

89 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 JK020725 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Boiler Signage 23.46$                

90 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 JK022225 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Kitchen Supplies 43.49$                

91 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 DK020625 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Cleaning Supplies 93.85$                

92 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 DK022125 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 111.86$              

93 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 DK022625 64700-010 Travel & Per Diem NWEA Travel & Per Diem 36.35$                

Page 3 of 4



CHECK REGISTER - GENERAL

3/1/25 - 3/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount

94 3/21/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-3/21/25-01 CC020425 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Grease Tank Repair 407.66$              

95 3/26/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5910 212931 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids 281.12$              

96 3/26/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5910 212917 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids 472.78$              

97 3/26/2025 California Industrial Rubber 5911 S06911 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Braided Hose 1,258.46$           

98 3/26/2025 Chevron and Texaco Business Card Services EFT-3/26/25-01 103581016 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels 298.75$              

99 3/26/2025 GapVax 5912 244757 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 227.94$              

100 3/26/2025 THE PARTS HOUSE 5913 188011 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 11.63$                

101 3/26/2025 Peterbilt EFT-3/26/25-02 DE-02887 16600-050 Semi Truck Semi Truck Deposit 5,000.00$           

102 3/26/2025 R F MACDONALD CO. 5914 369050 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance On-site Service Call 1,172.50$           

103 3/26/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-3/26/25-03 25-0255 71200-010 Engineering District Business 1,020.00$           

104 3/26/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-3/26/25-03 25-0256 55100-010 Reservoir Repairs & Maintenance Effluent 87.50$                

105 3/26/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-3/26/25-03 25-0257 71200-010 Engineering CMAR Contract 5,200.00$           

106 3/26/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-3/26/25-03 25-0258 71200-010 Engineering Plan Review Springhill Suites 1,000.00$           

107 3/26/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-3/26/25-03 25-0259 71200-010 Engineering Plan Review Vector Dr 820.00$              

108 3/26/2025 Ring Central Inc EFT-3/26/25-04 CD_001065274 64400-010 Telephone February-March VOIP 325.65$              

109 3/26/2025 COGEN SERVICE 5915 6806 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Preventative Maintenance 2,500.00$           

110 3/26/2025 Tractor Supply Credit Plan EFT-3/26/25-05 100842409 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 16.00$                

111 3/26/2025 Tractor Supply Credit Plan EFT-3/26/25-05 100846200 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 107.60$              

112 3/26/2025 Warren Averett Technology Group, LLC EFT-3/26/25-06 79284 65310-010 Software Services Azure Usage 1,497.80$           

113 3/26/2025 WESTERN INDUSTRIAL PARTS, INC. 5916 2412-109574 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 446.30$              

114 3/26/2025 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY 5917 11657565 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 715.00$              

115 3/26/2025 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY 5917 11639641 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance 19.08$                

Total of Checks (59 Checks/EFT) 142,212.28$       

Capital

Breaker Failure Costs

Page 4 of 4



CHECK REGISTER - PAYROLL

3/1/25 - 3/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount

1 3/14/2025 Public Employees Retirement System EFT-03/10/25-07 P0225 50200-010 Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits Monthly NV PERS - Feb-2025 30,300.56$                     

2 3/14/2025 JD EFT-03/10/25-01 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - JD 380.89$                          

3 3/14/2025 BF EFT-03/10/25-02 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - BF 519.43$                          

4 3/14/2025 JH EFT-03/10/25-03 121624 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - JH 86.16$                            

5 3/14/2025 FJ EFT-03/10/25-04 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - FJ 366.21$                          

6 3/14/2025 TS EFT-03/10/25-05 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - TS 364.48$                          

7 3/14/2025 SK EFT-03/10/25-06 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - SK 58.78$                            

8 3/14/2025 State Coll & Disb Unit - SCADU EFT-3/14/25-01 36-031425 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes Child Support - Bi-Weekly 163.38$                          

9 3/14/2025 Voya Financial EFT-3/14/25-02 03142025 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes 457 Mutual Fund 2,385.00$                       

10 3/14/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-031425-941 FED 941 3/14/2025 STAFF 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 941 3/14/2025 STAFF 6,431.37$                       

11 3/14/2025 WF Used for Direct Deposit ACH-031425-DD DD 3/14/2025 STAFF 10000-116 Cash - Payroll Checking - Wells Fargo DD 3/14/2025 STAFF 38,261.95$                     

12 3/28/2025 State Coll & Disb Unit - SCADU EFT-3/28/25-01 36-032825 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes Child Support - Bi-Weekly 163.38$                          

13 3/28/2025 Voya Financial EFT-3/28/25-02 03282025 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes 457 Mutual Fund 2,485.00$                       

14 3/28/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-032825-941 FED 941 3/14/2025 STAFF 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 941 3/28/2025 STAFF 6,642.62$                       

15 3/28/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-032825-941 FED 941 3/14/2025 NQ 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 941 3/28/2025 NQ 207.33$                          

16 3/28/2025 WF Used for Direct Deposit ACH-032825-DD DD 3/28/2025 STAFF 10000-116 Cash - Payroll Checking - Wells Fargo DD 3/28/2025 STAFF 37,783.93$                     

17 3/28/2025 WF Used for Direct Deposit ACH-032825-DD DD 3/28/2025 NQ 10000-116 Cash - Payroll Checking - Wells Fargo DD 3/28/2025 NQ 1,588.73$                       

18 3/31/2025 HealthEquity - ACH EFT-3/31/25-01 HSA03312025 50200-010 Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits Mar HSA Contributions 2,245.80$                       

19 3/31/2025 HOMETOWN HEALTH EFT-3/31/25-02 77101-046 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Mar 2025 Health Insurance 1,256.52$                       

20 3/31/2025 HOMETOWN HEALTH EFT-3/31/25-02 77101-046 50200-020 Medical Benefits Mar 2025 Health Insurance 16,834.69$                     

21 3/31/2025 METLIFE - GROUP BENEFITS EFT-3/31/25-03 03312025 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Dental & Life Insurance 385.76$                          

22 3/31/2025 METLIFE - GROUP BENEFITS EFT-3/31/25-03 03312025 50200-020 Medical Benefits Dental & Life Insurance 1,326.49$                       

23 3/31/2025 Nevada State Treasurer's Office EFT-3/31/25-04 36-0325 50200-010 Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits CS Handling Fee - Monthly 4.00$                              

24 3/31/2025 VSP VISION CARE, INC (AT) EFT-3/31/25-05 822468633 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Vision Insurance - Mar 2025 91.44$                            

25 3/31/2025 VSP VISION CARE, INC (AT) EFT-3/31/25-05 822468633 50200-020 Medical Benefits Vision Insurance - Mar 2025 146.46$                          

26 3/31/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-033125-941 FED 941 3/31/2025 BOARD 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 941 3/31/2025 BOARD 234.50$                          

27 3/31/2025 WF Used for Direct Deposit ACH-033125-DD DD 3/31/2025 BOARD 10000-116 Cash - Payroll Checking - Wells Fargo DD 3/31/2025 BOARD 2,332.75$                       

Total Amount of Checks (24 EFT/ACH) 153,047.61$                   

Page 1 of 1



Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

1 PAYROLL

2 Salaries $1,046,694.79 $1,294,988.00 $248,293.21 80.83% 19.17%

3 Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits $578,305.49 $822,858.00 $244,552.51 70.28% 29.72%

4 TOTAL PAYROLL $1,625,000.28 $2,117,846.00 $492,845.72 76.73% 23.27%

Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Nine Months Ending Monday, March 31, 2025

1



Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

5 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

6 PLANT EXPENSES

7 Safety $10,609.79 $12,000.00 $1,390.21 88.41% 11.59%

8 Plant Supplies (Processing Chemicals) $113,789.03 $162,750.00 $48,960.97 69.92% 30.08%

9 Utilities $131,506.44 $195,750.00 $64,243.56 67.18% 32.82%

10 Repairs & Maintenance $165,239.88 $325,000.00 $159,760.12 50.84% 49.16%

11 Mosquito Abatement $10,000.00 $10,000.00 0.00% 100.00%

12 Other Plant Expense $4,345.37 $6,500.00 $2,154.63 66.85% 33.15%

13 Sludge Removal $10,829.98 $18,000.00 $7,170.02 60.17% 39.83%

14 Education $4,649.14 $13,000.00 $8,350.86 35.76% 64.24%

15 TOTAL O & P EXPENSES $440,969.63 $743,000.00 $302,030.37 59.35% 40.65%

Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Nine Months Ending Monday, March 31, 2025

2



Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

16 COLLECTION EXPENSES

17 Collection System - Supplies $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00% 100.00%

18 Collection System - Cleaning/ TV / Repair & Maintenance $4,023.25 $7,000.00 $2,976.75 57.48% 42.53%

19 Truck & Auto Expense (Fuels) $10,007.15 $15,000.00 $4,992.85 66.71% 33.29%

20 Other Collection System Expense $2,067.30 $1,000.00 ($1,067.30) 206.73% (106.73%)

21 TOTAL COLLECTION EXPENSES $16,097.70 $27,000.00 $10,902.30 59.62% 40.38%

Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Nine Months Ending Monday, March 31, 2025

3



Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

22 LAB EXPENSES

23 Lab Supplies $8,044.18 $7,000.00 ($1,044.18) 114.92% (14.92%)

24 Lab Testing $20,049.00 $18,000.00 ($2,049.00) 111.38% (11.38%)

25 Lab Permitting $2,641.05 $1,800.00 ($841.05) 146.73% (46.73%)

26 Lab Repairs & Maintenance $5,492.08 $15,000.00 $9,507.92 36.61% 63.39%

27 Other Lab Expenses $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00% 100.00%

28 Pretreatment Testing $28,257.90 $50,000.00 $21,742.10 56.52% 43.48%

29 TOTAL LAB EXPENSES $64,484.21 $92,800.00 $28,315.79 69.49% 30.51%

Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Nine Months Ending Monday, March 31, 2025

4



Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

30 RESERVOIR/EFFLUENT EXPENSES

31 Effluent Management -  Repairs & Maintenance $5,705.50 $20,000.00 $14,294.50 28.53% 71.47%

32 Effluent Management - Utilities $17,467.01 $50,000.00 $32,532.99 34.93% 65.07%

33 TOTAL RERVOIR/EFFLUENT EXPENSES $23,172.51 $70,000.00 $46,827.49 33.10% 66.90%

Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Nine Months Ending Monday, March 31, 2025

5



Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

34 GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

35 Office Supplies & Expense $5,069.57 $11,000.00 $5,930.43 46.09% 53.91%

36 Training/Education Expense $579.00 $5,000.00 $4,421.00 11.58% 88.42%

37 Cleaning &Kitchen Supplies $7,115.26 $11,000.00 $3,884.74 64.68% 35.32%

38 Statement Billing Supplies $5,407.06 $6,000.00 $592.94 90.12% 9.88%

39 Bank Charges $25,237.50 $17,000.00 ($8,237.50) 148.46% (48.46%)

40 Telephone & Internet $20,979.24 $20,000.00 ($979.24) 104.90% (4.90%)

41 Postage $5,023.62 $10,500.00 $5,476.38 47.84% 52.16%

42 Advertising & Publication $1,127.25 $5,000.00 $3,872.75 22.55% 77.46%

43 Software Services $49,426.58 $52,500.00 $3,073.42 94.15% 5.85%

44 Travel & Per Diem $5,038.64 $8,000.00 $2,961.36 62.98% 37.02%

Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Nine Months Ending Monday, March 31, 2025

6



Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

45 Bad Debts $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00% 100.00%

46 A/R Collection Expense ($578.00) $1,700.00 $2,278.00 (34.00%) 134.00%

47 Insurance & Bonding $101,197.26 $154,318.00 $53,120.74 65.58% 34.42%

48 Other Administration Expense $5,813.41 $4,000.00 ($1,813.41) 145.34% (45.34%)

49 Filing Fees & Permits $9,520.91 $12,000.00 $2,479.09 79.34% 20.66%

50 Office Equipment (Hardware) $8,556.34 $12,000.00 $3,443.66 71.30% 28.70%

51 TOTAL G&A $249,513.64 $331,018.00 $81,504.36 75.38% 24.62%

Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Nine Months Ending Monday, March 31, 2025

7



Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

52 PROFESSIONAL FEES

53 Legal $13,089.50 $50,000.00 $36,910.50 26.18% 73.82%

54 Engineering $41,017.80 $120,000.00 $78,982.20 34.18% 65.82%

55 IT/Tech Professional Services $13,245.98 $30,000.00 $16,754.02 44.15% 55.85%

56 Accounting & Audit $6,000.00 $31,500.00 $25,500.00 19.05% 80.95%

57 TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES $73,353.28 $231,500.00 $158,146.72 31.69% 68.31%

58 TOTAL ALL OPERATIONS EXPENSES $867,590.97 $1,495,318.00 $627,727.03 58.02% 41.98%

Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Nine Months Ending Monday, March 31, 2025

8



Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

CAPITAL EXPENSES

Collection System Rehab $0.00 $1,950,000.00 $1,950,000.00 0.00% 100.00%

Collection System Rehab-Old Budget Years ($106,114.46) $106,114.46 0.00% 0.00%

Semi Truck $5,000.00 $250,000.00 $245,000.00 2.00% 98.00%

Boiler Replacement #2 $86,873.49 $97,000.00 $10,126.51 89.56% 10.44%

Clean & Inspect Digester $0.00 $280,000.00 $280,000.00 0.00% 100.00%

Rehab Concrete in Primary Clarifier $61,608.33 $1,200,000.00 $1,138,391.67 5.13% 94.87%

Plant PLC & Infrastucture Replacement $67,756.17 $300,000.00 $232,243.83 22.59% 77.41%

Breaker Emergency Repair Reclass 24/25 FY $60,706.96 ($60,706.96) 0.00% 0.00%

Office Addition Design $4,175.00 $100,000.00 $95,825.00 4.18% 95.83%

Office/Computer Equipment $1,566.59 ($1,566.59) 0.00% 0.00%

ARRA Reimbursement $77,166.63 $77,167.00 $0.37 100.00% 0.00%

TOTAL $258,738.71 $4,254,167.00 $3,995,428.29 6.08% 93.92%

Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Nine Months Ending Monday, March 31, 2025



 
 

Agenda Item 3 
 

District Manager’s Report 
 
Items in this Section Include: 

 
 May 2025 District Manager’s Report  
  Capacity Report for April 2025 

  



  Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District 
District Manager's Report 

May 6, 2025 

LINE REHABILITATION AND PLANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS: 
• Emergency decommission of Primary Clarifier #3 following a structural failure of the center ring feed well
• Breaker repairs are underway, and installation of the switchgear set ducting is currently in progress
• We’ve started to camera and clean the collection system
• A motor was replaced on the Belt Press makeup air unit
• The fields are being irrigated

OTHER: 
• We are developing an RFQ for a District Architect to assist with the office addition.

Respectfully submitted, 
Peter V. Baratti, District Manager 

CAPACITY ALLOCATIONS/PURCHASES: VENDORS AND CONTRACTS: 
• 24.5 EDUs sold • None

WILL SERVES LETTERS ISSUED: STAFF/OFFICE ITEMS: 
• No will-serves issued this month • None

MEETINGS ATTENDED AND SCHEDULED: PROJECTS IN THE DISTRICT: 
04/03 
04/08 

04/09 

04/10 

04/10 

04/15 
04/29 

Lab corrective action plan update 
Pre-construction meeting for the 
Gardnerville Maverik 
Pre-construction meeting for the 
Interceptor Rehab CMAR. 
Meeting with DTS Fiber to review IT 
requirements 
Meeting with Keith Shaffer (RCI) about 
upcoming projects 
Meeting with ESRI for ArcGIS Support 
USDA, NDEP, RCI, and Contractor meeting 
for Pineview project kick-off 

• Maverik in Gardnerville has broken ground
• Vector Drive has begun construction for paving and

utility improvement
• Village at Martin’s Meadows continuing to build

out
• Village at Monte Vista continuing to build out
• The Downs at Monte Vista continuing to build out
• Heybourne Meadows (Phase 6) continues to build

out



Capacity Total
4/2/2025 Downs at Monte Vista Santa Ynez Multiple 8.00 0.00  $    46,200.00  $    46,200.00 
4/2/2025 Village at Monte Vista Santa Ynez Multiple 8.00 0.00  $    46,200.00  $    46,200.00 
4/14/2025 Heybourne Meadows Lennar Multiple 8.00 0.00  $    46,200.00  $    46,200.00 
4/29/2025 N/A Mark Setzer 1022 Frieda Ln 0.50 1.00  $      2,860.00  $      2,860.00 

 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   
 $                -    $                -   

TOTAL EDU's 
SOLD 24.500 141,460.00$  141,460.00$  

CommentsDeveloper Amount Collected

MONTHLY REPORT OF
CAPACITY SOLD

For the month of April 2025

Date Project Name Address EDU's 
Sold

Existing 
EDU's Approved By



 
 

Agenda Item 6 
 

April 1st  2025 Regular Meeting Minutes &               
April 8th Special Meeting Minutes 

 
Items in this Section Include: 

 
 April 1st 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 
 April 8th Special Meeting Minutes 

 
 
 
 



 

Board of Trustees 
Minutes of Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, April 1, 2025 
5:00 P.M. | Board Room 

Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District 
1790 Hwy. 395 

Minden, Nevada 
 
Board Members Present: Board Members Absent: Staff Members Present:  Staff Members Absent: 
Ted Thran   None    Peter Baratti   None 
Sondra Condron                                                                       Cliff Simpson    
Chris Shorten                    Jessica Kneefel    
Michele Wagner      LaVonne Ghanavati 
Dan Griffith       Haley Freeman 
                                                                                                                Bruce Scott 
        Bill Peterson 
Others Present: Greg Reed 
 
 
1. Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Ted Thran. 
 
2. Public Comment: There was no public comment.  
 
3. District Manager’s Report:  Vice Chair Shorten asked if there was an update regarding the easement for the 
Muller Lane Multimodal trail. Peter reported he asked the County to adjust the alignment along the northwest 
portion because it impedes some of the District’s infrastructure, which the County was amenable to. Bill Peterson 
will be working on the final verbiage before it gets brought back to the Board. 
 
4. Chairman’s Comment: There was no Chairman’s Comment. 
 
5. Claims Review and Approval:   Trustee Condron asked about the acreage fee amount, LaVonne Ghanavati 
answered that it was a purchase from GRGID.  
 
Motion:  To approve the claims received in February, 2025 for in the amount of $112,701.89 and the payroll-related 
expenses paid during in the amount of $162,149.15. 
 
Made by:  Chris Shorten 
Seconded by:  Sondra Condron 
Vote:  Motion carried. 

Ayes:  Thran, Condron, Wagner, Shorten, Griffith 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 

 
 

 

 

 



Minutes 
 April 1, 2025 

Page 2 

6. Minutes of March 4th, 2025 Regular Board Meeting: There were no comments or discussion regarding the
minutes. 

Motion:  To approve the minutes of the March 4th, 2025 Regular Board Meeting. 

Made by:  Sondra Condron 
Seconded by:  Chris Shorten 
Vote:  Motion carried. 

Ayes:  Thran, Condron, Shorten, Griffith 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: Wagner 
Absent: None 

7. Semi-Truck Purchase: Peter reported that he tried to get a dump truck from the Reno Peterbilt location but
they didn’t have one available that had a bed, which the District needs specifically for the belt press. The bed also
needed to have specific dimensions in order to fit into the building.

Trustee Shorten asked if the District would sell the current dump truck. Peter said he wasn’t sure yet, and that it 
would be a good idea to keep the truck as a backup. However, it was purchased in the 1990’s and the District has 
already reinvested thousands of dollars into its repairs and maintenance.  

Trustee Condron asked if the new dump truck had been delivered. Peter answered it likely won’t be delivered until 
July, and it had to be purchased before the new tariffs took effect, which saved the District approximately $20,000. 
Trustee Griffith commented that he owns a trucking company and the District got a great deal on the new dump 
truck.  

Motion:  To accept the purchase of the Peterbilt dump truck in the amount of $231,969.00. Any additional fees to 
be brought back to the Board for approval. 

Made by:  Daniel Griffith 
Seconded by:  Sondra Condron 
Vote:  Motion carried. 

Ayes:  Thran, Condron, Shorten, Griffith, Wagner 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

8. Gardnerville Ranchos GID Agreement:  Peter reported to the Board that Greg had brought this idea to him
at the beginning of the year in an informal discussion, which is what led to the letter he received. Peter agreed it
would be a good idea to revisit the agreement and that it would be beneficial to streamline the billing process for
both MGSD and GRGID. Peter mentioned he didn’t agree with the formation of a committee for renegotiations, and
instead would like all MGSD Board members informed on those discussions. Trustee Condron expressed concern
about opening discussions to the agreement since it has been in effect for so long.



 
    Minutes 

             April 1, 2025  
   Page 3 
 

 
 

 

Bill Peterson said he has deep roots within the agreement and agreed that it is complex and should be updated. He 
said the last time the Board revisited the agreement was during arbitration over the CoGen system. This was 
mediated by Judge Gamble, who also recommended the Board simplify it, but the Board disagreed at the time.  
 
Chairman Thran recommended multiple workshops regarding the agreement so that the Board fully understands 
the billing process, and he would also like the possibility of bringing back Catherine from Hansford Economic 
Services to create a methodology and structure of new rates that MGSD could present to GRGID.  
 
Greg Reed commented that he believes there’s an opportunity with current management, staff, and Trustees to 
make the billing easier. He stated the intent was not to decrease GRGID’s fees to MGSD, but to simplify the billing 
process.  
 
The Board agreed that they would like to schedule the first workshop at the May 6th Regular Board Meeting.  
 
9.  Attorney-Client Conference:  Bill Peterson reported the Muller Lane easement was too one-sided in the 
County’s favor so he will be revising it for renegotiations.  
 
10.  Engineer’s Report:  Bruce Scott reported that they had a pre-construction services agreement for the CMAR 
contract which is the design and details of the construction. The next contract will be the Contract of 
Construction, which will include a not-to-exceed number for the cost.  
 
11.  Administrative Report by Staff:  Peter reported that the new Board members have been added as 
authorized signers on the Wells Fargo account.  
 
12.  Board Comment:  There was no board comment.  
 
13.  Public Comment:  There was no public comment.  
 
14.  Meeting adjourned 7:07 p.m. 
 
Approved by the Board of Trustees as presented on: 
 
 
   By       . 
Date    Haley Freeman, District Secretary 



 

Board of Trustees 
Minutes of Special Meeting 

Tuesday, April 8, 2025 
12:00 P.M. | Board Room 

Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District 
1790 Hwy. 395 

Minden, Nevada 
 

Board Members Present: Board Members Absent: Staff Members Present:  Staff Members Absent: 
Ted Thran   Dan Griffith   Peter Baratti   Bill Peterson 
Sondra Condron                                 Ted Thran                                      Haley Freeman   Bruce Scott 
Chris Shorten                    Jessica Kneefel    Cliff Simpson 
Michele Wagner      LaVonne Ghanavati 
        
Others Present: Peter Katz 
 

 
1. Meeting called to order at 12:00 p.m. by Chris Shorten. 
 
2. Public Comment: There was no public comment.  
 
3. MGSD Salary Scale:  Haley Freeman reported that there are four changes to the salary scale. GIS Manager 
was added for Joe Church who completed his classes at UNR. Engineer Intern was added for Jessica Kneefel who 
completed her classes at UNR. Administrator was formerly called “Senior Executive Assistant” but the scale 
remains the same. Lab Manager was formerly “Lab Technician” but the scale remains the same.  
 
Trustee Condron asked for clarification on step increases regarding the salary scale. Peter Baratti explained that if 
operators pass certificates or grade tests, they can be eligible for an additional step or half step within the salary 
scale depending on their performance. The certificates and grade tests also require time in the field per state 
requirements before an operator is eligible for testing. Trustee Condron said she liked the salary scale and the 
system that the District has in place. Trustee Shorten asked if the Engineer position was to eventually replace the 
District’s use of RCI. Peter Baratti said the District’s goal is to have an in-house engineering professional but will 
continue to use RCI for oversight on matters outside of Jessica’s scope of ability.  
 
Motion:  To approve the proposed salary scale for FY 2025-2026 with a COLA adjustment of 2.5%. 
 
Made by:  Sondra Condron 
Seconded by:  Michele Wagner 
Vote:  Motion carried. 

Ayes:  Shorten, Condron, Wagner  
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None  
Absent: Thran, Griffith 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
    Minutes 

             April 8, 2025  
   Page 2 
 

 
 

 
 
4. Tentative Budget: Peter Baratti presented the 2025-2026 Tentative Budget to the Board; discussion followed. 
 
Motion:  To approve the Tentative Budget FY 2025-2026 with a tax rate of .1224%. 
 
Made by:  Sondra Condron 
Seconded by:  Michele Wagner 
Vote:  Motion carried. 

Ayes:  Shorten, Condron, Wagner  
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None  
Absent: Thran, Griffith 

 
5. Wells Fargo Money Market Sweep Account:   Peter Katz from Wells Fargo described the details of the 
Money Market Sweep Account. Vice Chairman Shorten asked if there would be any reason to keep money in the 
General account. Peter Katz said it would be beneficial to move as much money as possible into the sweep 
account to continue to maintain a high earning allowance. Trustee Condron said she felt very comfortable with the 
Sweep Account and liked that the District could switch back to a General account within 2 business days for any 
reason.  
 
Motion:  To tie the District’s General Fund to a Money Market Sweep Account.  
 
Made by:  Sondra Condron 
Seconded by:  Michele Wagner 
Vote:  Motion carried. 

Ayes:  Shorten, Condron, Wagner  
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None  
Absent: Thran, Griffith 

 
6.  Staff Comment:  There was no staff comment. 

7.  Board Comment:  There was no board comment.  
 
8.  Public Comment:  There was no public comment.  
 
9.  Meeting adjourned  1:43p.m. 
 
Approved by the Board of Trustees as presented on: 
 
 
   By       . 
Date    Haley Freeman, District Secretary 



Agenda Item 7 

Heybourne Meadows Phase VI 

Items in this Section Include: 

  RCI Approval of Sewer Improvements with conditions 







Agenda Item 12 

Administrative Report by Staff 

Items in this Section Include: 

 Administrative Staff Report for May 2025



  Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District 
Administrative Report 

May 6, 2025 

UPCOMING ITEMS: FOR YOUR INFORMATION: 

• Final Budget Hearing (May 20 at
12:00pm)

Plant Insurance Pool Presentation
from Warren Reed (June 3 Regular
Board Meeting)

• The Nevada Legislation ends in June; we will
present any bills that affect the District
shortly after.


	Binder1.pdf
	Account Summary Statement - Cash Flow March 2025 Board.pdf
	Board Packet Insert Sheets 5-6-2025.doc.pdf
	CHECKING export for Mar 2025.pdf
	PAYROLL export for Mar 2025.pdf
	2025-05 Admin Report.pdf
	Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District
	Administrative Report

	05-25 mgrs rpt.pdf
	Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District
	District Manager's Report

	PR-OPERATIONS Mar 2025.pdf
	5-06-25 Agenda.pdf
	CAPITAL EXPENSES Mar 2025.pdf
	2025-04-10 Ltr Thran 23-002.8 MGSD EN-ca L4-11.pdf

	04-08-25 Minutes.pdf
	04-01-25 Minutes.pdf
	Monthly Capacity Report - 05-25.pdf
	Sheet1




